
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

110 N. Poplar Street • PO Box 218 • West Branch, Iowa 52358 

(319) 643-5888 • Fax (319) 643-2305 • www.westbranchiowa.org • city@westbranchiowa.org 
 

  

 Mayor:  Roger Laughlin · Council Members: Jordan Ellyson, Colton Miller, Brian Pierce, Tim Shields, Mary Beth Stevenson 

Interim City Administrator:  Nick Shimmin · Fire Chief:  Kevin Stoolman  

Parks & Rec Director:  Melissa Russell · Police Chief:  Mike Horihan · Public Works Director:  Matt Goodale  

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, April 3, 2017 • 7:00 p.m. 

City Council Chambers, 110 North Poplar Street 

Action may be taken on any agenda item. 

 

1. Call to order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

3. Roll call 

4. Welcome 

5. Approve Agenda/Consent Agenda/Move to action. 

a.    Approve minutes from the March 20, 2017 City Council Meeting. 

b. Approve claims. 

c. Approve Pay Estimate No. 3 in the amount of $43,605 to All American 

Concrete, Inc. of West Liberty, IA for Parks & Rec Phase 1 improvements.  

6. Communications/Open Forum 

7. Public Hearing/Non-Consent Agenda 

a. Kevin Rogers, West Branch Community Development Group – Quarterly 

Update 

b. Sandee Buysee, Liberty Communications – Smart Cities Designation signs. 

c. Brian Shay, Coohey Construction – Lot 21 of Pedersen Valley III Phase 1 

development 

d. Resolution 1586, approving those certain agreements in connection with the 

Main Street Sidewalk Improvements – Phase 4 Project./Move to action. 

e. Resolution 1587, accepting bids and awarding the construction contract for the 

Main Street Sidewalk Improvements – Phase 4 Project for the City of West 

Branch, Iowa./Move to action. 

f. Resolution 1592 approving the purchase of a 2017 _________ Police 

Department vehicle not to exceed $28,500./Move to Action 

g. Resolution 1594 approving the Croell Redi-Mix, Inc. Grading and Erosion 

Control plan./Move to Action 

h. Resolution 1595 approving 28E agreements between the City of West Branch, 

Iowa and the boards of trustees of Cass, Gower, Graham, Iowa, Scott, and 

Springdale townships for the purposes of fire protection and aid and assistance 

for other emergencies or disasters relating to life and property, or hazardous 

materials. /Move to action 

i. Resolution 1596 approving a contract with the Feralings for the 2017 Summer 

Concert Series in the amount of $500./Move to action 

j. Resolution 1597 approving annual insurance renewals with Wellmark Blue Cross 

Blue Shield of Iowa for health and dental insurance./Move to action 

mailto:city@westbranchiowa.org


 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

110 N. Poplar Street • PO Box 218 • West Branch, Iowa 52358 

(319) 643-5888 • Fax (319) 643-2305 • www.westbranchiowa.org • city@westbranchiowa.org 
 

  

 Mayor:  Roger Laughlin · Council Members: Jordan Ellyson, Colton Miller, Brian Pierce, Tim Shields, Mary Beth Stevenson 

Interim City Administrator:  Nick Shimmin · Fire Chief:  Kevin Stoolman  

Parks & Rec Director:  Melissa Russell · Police Chief:  Mike Horihan · Public Works Director:  Matt Goodale  

 

 

k. Resolution 1598 approving the Wage Works flexible spending account renewal 

for April 1, 2017 – January 31, 2018./Move to action 

l. Resolution 1599 approving Pedersen Valley Part Three - Phase Two, Lots 41 & 

42 and Pedersen Valley Part Five, Outlot G Site Plan 

m. City Engineer Dave Schechinger - College St. Bridge aesthetic./ Discussion and 

Possible Action 

8. City Staff Reports 

a. Interim City Administrator Nick Shimmin – Continuance of the Building 

Incentive Program 

b. City Attorney Kevin Olson – update on Casey’s First Right of Refusal.  

c. Melissa Russell  – Pedersen Valley Check Plans 

d. Melissa Russell – Update on Spring and Summer Parks & Recreation programs 

and events 

9. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

10. Adjournment 

mailto:city@westbranchiowa.org


 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                                  March 20, 2017  

Council Chambers                                                                                                      7:00 p.m. 

  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Mayor Laughlin then 
invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   
Roll call: Mayor Roger Laughlin was present. Council members: Colton Miller, Mary Beth Stevenson, Tim 
Shields, Jordan Ellyson and Brian Pierce were present.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City 
staff: City Administrator Matt Muckler, Deputy City Clerk Gordon Edgar, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Public 
Works Director Matt Goodale and Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION.  
Approve minutes from the March 6, 2017 City Council Meeting. 
Approve claims. 
Motion by Ellyson, second by Miller to approve agenda/consent agenda items a and b.  AYES: Ellyson, Miller, 
Stevenson, Pierce, and Shields.   Motion carried. 
 
EXPENDITURES      3/20/2017  
ACTION SEWER & SEPTIC SERV  SERVICE CALL     345.00  
AMAZON     BOOKS AND SUPPLIES     353.83  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.   BOOKS      602.95  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY  REPAIR/MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    264.15  
BP AMOCO   VEHICLE FUEL     111.71  
CEDAR COUNTY COOPERATIVE  FUEL      1,598.39  
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER  LEGAL RECORDINGS     98.00  
CJ COOPER & ASSOCIATES  PRE EMPLOYMENT TEST    35.00  
COPYWORKS   COPYWORKS     244.00  
DEWEYS JACK & JILL   EASTER EGG HUNT SUPPLIES    35.06  
EASTERN IOWA COMMUNITY COL CLASS FEES     100.00  
FARMERS SUPPLY SALES INC  MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    129.67  
FRED'S FEED & SUPPLY LLC  SUPPLIES      12.99  
GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES  GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES    1,278.32  
HARRY'S CUSTOM TROPHIES LT  EMPLOYEE SERVICE AWARDS    119.18  
HAWKINS INC   CHEMICALS     1,144.75  
IAWEA     IAWEA WORKSHOP REGISTRATION  75.00  
IOWA MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFF  SPRING CONFERENCE     125.00  
IOWA ONE CALL   LOCATION SERVICE     32.40  
IOWA PARK AND RECREATION A  MEMBERSHIP DUES     155.00  
IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, TRE  CERTIFICATION FEE     50.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.  RECYCLING FEB, 2017     3,743.00  
KINGDOM GRAPHICS LLC  SAFETY SHIRTS     230.00  
KIRKWOOD COMM. COLLEGE  EMR TUITION     7,870.50  
L. L. PELLING CO. INC   ROAD REPAIR     435.24  
LACKENDER FABRICATIONS INC  SKIDLOADER ROOT GRAPPLE    1,713.00  
LINN COUNTY R.E.C.   SIREN @ GREENVIEW     138.00  
MECHANICSVILLE PUBLIC LIBR  SUBSCRIPTION     10.00  
MID-STATES ORGANIZED CRIME  MEMBERSHIP DUES     75.00  
MIDWEST FRAME & AXLE  VEHICLE REPAIR     243.95  
NATIONAL RECREATION AND PA  NRPA MEMBERSHIP     165.00  
OLSON, KEVIN D   LEGAL SERVICE     1,500.00  
OVERDRIVE INC   EBOOKS      164.98  
PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANC  LIBRARY POSTAGE METER RENTAL  120.00  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWE PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER  500.00  
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC  LAB ANALYSIS     584.00  
QUILL CORP   OFFICE SUPPLIES     315.58  
STATE HYGIENIC LAB   LAB ANALYSIS     25.00  
STOOLMAN, JODEE   MILEAGE      155.30  
TOYNES IA. FIRE TRK.SERV  REPAIR PARTS     225.87  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD  TRAINING & EQUIP REPAIR    149.16  
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC DVDS AND SUPPLIES     284.58  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHO HS TRACK RENTAL     100.00  
WEST BRANCH REPAIRS  VEHICLE REPAIR     42.15  
WEST BRANCH TIMES   LEGAL NOTICES & ADVERTISING    1,045.83  

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

    
TOTAL           26,746.54  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
ALLIANT ENERGY    UTILITIES     9,931.95  
BRICK, LESLIE    TRAVEL & SUPPLIES    27.59  
COSTCO WHOLESALE    MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES   416.73  
EDGAR, GORDON    MILEAGE     57.41  
HILL, SHERRY    VIDEO RECORDING SERVICE   200.00  
IOWA SECTION AWWA   WATER DISTRIBUTION TRAINING   140.00  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING    41.72  
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE   LIBRARY-COPIER LEASE   300.80  
WEX BANK     VEHICLE FUEL    915.62  
    
TOTAL           12,031.82  
    
PAYROLL 3-10-17         38,645.67  
    
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES        77,424.03  
    
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND     41,178.62 
022   CIVIC CENTER     1228.66 
031   LIBRARY     7,703.82 
110   ROAD USE TAX     6,240.83 
112   TRUST AND AGENCY    4,187.97 
600   WATER FUND     9,773.29 
610   SEWER FUND     7,110.84 
    
GRAND TOTAL     77,424.03 
 

 
COMMUNICATIONS/OPEN FORUM  

Tara Andresen, who will be purchasing property at 106 Scott Drive, requested permission to construct a fence 
on city property or would like to purchase the city property for the purpose of constructing a fence.  The city 
response was that the fence should be constructed on her property. 
Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk, reported he will change the city Health Insurance plan year to end on January 
31 in order to obtain new health insurance rates for the budget each year.  He will also change the plan year for 
the Flexible Benefits program to avoid any problems for employees in complying with IRS rules unless he hears 
objections from the Council Members regarding this action. 
Matt Muckler, City Administrator, presented a list of projects to the Council Members that are in various stages 
of progress.  He highlighted the projects that may need council action and also listed the contact name for each 
project. 
  

PUBLIC HEARING/NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Mayor Roger Laughlin – Recognition of Nick Shimmin – Ten Years of Service  
Mayor Laughlin presented Library Director/IT Director with an award for ten years of service to the City and 
thanked him for ten years of “really good service”. 
 
Third Reading of Ordinance 745, establishing a Historic Preservation Commission for the City of West Branch, 
Iowa; providing for the recognition and promotion of historic sites and defining powers and duties of the 
Commission./Move to action. 
Motion by Ellyson, second by Stevenson to approve second reading of Ordinance 745.  AYES: Ellyson, 
Stevenson, Miller, Pierce, and Shields.  Motion carried. 
        
       ORDINANCE       
       745 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION FOR THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA; PROVIDING 
FOR THE RECOGNITION AND PROMOTION OF HISTORIC SITES AND DEFINING POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE COMMISSION. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA: 
 
Section 1:  Purpose and Intent 
 



 

The purpose of this ordinance is to: 
 
a. Promote the educational, cultural, economic and general welfare of the public through the recognition, enhancement, and 
perpetuation of sites and districts of historical and cultural significance; 
b. Safeguard the City's historic, aesthetic, and cultural heritage by preserving sites and districts of historic and cultural significance; 
c. Stabilize and improve property values; 
d. Foster pride in the legacy of beauty and achievements of the past; 
e. Protect and enhance the City's attractions to tourists and visitors and the support and stimulus to business thereby provided; 
f. Strengthen the economy of the City; 
g. Promote the use of sites and districts of historic and cultural significance as places for the education, pleasure, and welfare of the 
people of the City. 
Section 2: Definitions 
a. Commission.  The West Branch Historic Preservation Commission, as established by this ordinance. 
b. Historic District.  An area which contains a significant portion of sites including archaeological sites, buildings, structures, objects 
and/or other improvements which, considered as a whole, possesses integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, 
and association, and 
1. embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or that represents the work of a master, or that 
possesses high artistic values, or that 
represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack individual distinction; or 
2. is associated with events that have made significant contributions to the broad patterns of our local, state or national history; or 
3. possesses a coherent and distinctive visual character or integrity based upon similarity of scale, design, color, setting, workmanship, 
materials, or combinations thereof, which is deemed to add significantly to the value and attractiveness of properties within such area. 
4. is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; or 
5. has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history. 
c. Historic Landmark. A site including archaeological sites, object, structure or building which, 
1. is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history; or 
2. is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; or 
3. embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or that represents a work of a master, or that 
possesses high artistic values, or that represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack individual distinction; or 
4. has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history. 
Section 3: West Branch Historic Preservation Commission 
a. The Commission shall initially consist of five members who shall be residents of the City. 
b. Members of the Commission shall be appointed by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the City Council. Members shall 
demonstrate a positive interest in historic preservation, possessing interest or expertise in architecture, architectural history, historic 
preservation, city planning, building rehabilitation, conservation in general or real estate. 
c. The original appointment of the members of the Commission shall be, three for two years, and two for three years, from January 1 
following the year of such appointment or until their successor is appointed to serve for the term of three years. 
d. Vacancies occurring in the Commission, other than expiration of term of office, shall be only for the unexpired portion of the term of 
the member replaced. 
e. Members may serve for more than one term and each member shall serve until the appointment of a successor. 
f. Vacancies shall be filled by the City according to the original selection as aforesaid. 
g. Members shall serve without compensation. 
h. A simple majority of the commission shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. 
i. The Commission shall elect a Chairman who shall preside over all Commission meetings and elect a Secretary who shall be 
responsible for maintaining written records of the commission's proceedings. 
j. The Commission shall meet at least three (3) times a year. 
k. Because the West Branch Historic Preservation Commission has a strong interest in liaison with organizations that have a special 
affinity with local history, the Commission may recommend to the Mayor and Council that up to three (3) Ex. Officio (non-voting) honorary 
members be appointed to the Commission by the Mayor with the advice and consent of the City Council. These Ex. Officio (non-voting) 
honorary members may be representatives of the Herbert Hoover National Historic Site, the Herbert Hoover Presidential Library-Museum and 
the Hoover Presidential Foundation.  
Section 4:  Powers of the Commission 
a. The Commission may conduct studies for the identification and designation of historic districts and landmarks meeting the definitions 
established by this ordinance. The commission may proceed at its own initiative or upon a petition from any person, group, or association.  
The Commission shall maintain records of all studies and inventories for public use. 
b. The Commission may make a recommendation to the State Historic Preservation Office for the listing of a historic district or landmark 
in the National Register of Historic Places and may conduct a public hearing thereon. 
c. The Commission may investigate and recommend to the City Council the adoption of ordinances designating historic landmarks and 
historic districts if they qualify as defined herein; and 
d. Provide information for the purpose of historic preservation to the governing body. 
e. Promote and conduct an educational and interpretive program on historic properties within its jurisdiction. 
f. Other Powers.  In addition to those duties and powers specified above, the Commission may, with City Council approval: 
1. Accept unconditional gifts and donations of real and personal property, including money, for the purpose of historic preservation. 
2. Acquire by purchase, bequest, or donation, fee and lesser interests in historic properties, including properties adjacent to or 
associated with historic properties. 
3. Preserve, restore, maintain and operate historic properties, under the ownership or control of the Commission. 
4. Lease, sell, and otherwise transfer or dispose of historic properties subject to rights of public access and other covenants and in a 
manner that will preserve the property. 
5. Contract, with the approval of the governing body, with the state or the federal government or other organizations. 
6. Cooperate with the federal, state and local governments in the pursuance of the objectives of historic preservation. 
Section 5:  Signs 
It is unlawful for a person to install, alter or repair any signs within the Preservation or Historic District (see attached map) without first obtaining 
a permit.  All signs shall conform with the “Standards for Signage Design and Display” (attached as Appendix pages 22-26) and with the design 
principles contained within the Preservation Brief:  The Preservation of Historic Signs by Michael J. Auer (attached). The city administrator 
shall be responsible for ensuring that sign applications (form attached as Appendix page 29) are reviewed and processed in a timely manner 



 

according to the above-mentioned standards and principles. All signs that were installed or displayed as of September 9, 1991 are allowed to 
remain. All signs installed or displayed after that date must comply with this chapter. 
Section 6:  Severability 
Should any section or provision of this ordinance be decided by a court of this state to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any part thereof other than the part so decided to be unconstitutional or invalid. 
Section 7: Amendatory Provisions 
The City may amend this ordinance to meet any unforeseen circumstances which may affect the duties and responsibilities of the Commission. 
Section 8: Effective Date 
This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage and publication as required by law. 
* * * * * * *  
Passed and approved this 6th day of March, 2017. 
First Reading:   February 21, 2017 
Second Reading: March 6, 2017 
Third Reading: March 20, 2017 
       _____________________________ 
       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_________________________________ 
Matt Muckler, City Administrator/Clerk 
 
Resolution 1579, approving a variance for street width in the Meadows Subdivision, Part 3./Move to action. 
Motion by Pierce, second by Shields.  Shields stated that he had requested Public Works Director Goodale to 
measure some of the streets.  Goodale reported that most streets were 29 to 31 feet wide with Main Street at 34.  
City Engineer Schechinger reported that long wide streets tend to encourage speeding and that some cities are 
trying to reduce impervious surface, by reducing street width, to decrease storm water runoff.  Brad Larson of 
KLM asked the Council to approve the variance.  AYES:  Pierce, Shields, Stevenson.  NAYS:  Miller, Ellyson,.   
Motion failed because it was the second vote on a motion that failed last month and needed four votes to pass. 
 
Resolution 1580, approving a sub-divider’s agreement for the Meadows Subdivision, Parts Three A and Three 
B./Move to action. 
Kevin Olson, city attorney, said he had not split the agreement yet, but if the developer wants approval of 3A, 
which includes the outlot, that could be done now.  Brian Boelk, representing the developer requested the Council 
address only Part 3A at this time and table Part 3B.     
Motion by Stevenson, second by Shields to approve Resolution 1580, Part Three A.  AYES: Stevenson, Shields, 
Ellyson, Pierce.  NAYS:  Miller.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 1581, approving the Meadows Subdivision, Part 3A Preliminary Plat/Move to action.  
Motion by Shields, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1581.  AYES: Shields, Pierce, Stevenson, Ellyson, 
NAYS:  Miller.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 1588, approving an amendment to subscription agreement with Tyler Technologies in the 
amount of $16,756.00./Move to action 
Motion by Pierce, second by Stevenson to approve Resolution 1588.  AYES: Pierce, Stevenson, Miller, Ellyson, 
Shields.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 1589, forgiving certain sanitary sewer charges/Move to action 
Motion by Ellyson, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1589.  AYES:  Ellyson, Pierce, Stevenson, Miller, 
Shields.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 1590, approving a contract with the FunkDaddies for the 2017 Hoover’s Hometown Days 
Celebration in the amount of $1,000.00./Move to action. 
Motion by Stevenson, second by Shields to approve Resolution 1590.  AYES: Stevenson, Shields, Pierce, Miller, 
Ellyson.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 1591, approving three agreements for the 2017 Music on the Green Concert Series in the 
amount of $859.00./Move to action 
Motion by Stevenson, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1591.  AYES: Stevenson, Ellyson, Miller, Pierce, 
Shields.  Motion carried. 
 
 



 

CITY STAFF REPORTS  
There were no comments from the city staff.   
 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
Mayor Laughlin thanked departing City Administrator Matt Muckler for his service to the city and presented 
him with a framed Post-it note, signed by City staff and elected officials.  Administrator Muckler said it has 
been a great pleasure to work for the Mayor, Council and residents of West Branch.   All of the Council 
members thanked Matt for his service. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn regular meeting by Shields, second by Ellyson.  Motion carried on a voice vote. City Council 
meeting adjourned at 7:59 p.m. 
   
                           _________________________________________  
                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 
                   Gordon R. Edgar, Deputy City Clerk  
 











Cedar County, IA

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and
is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be

accurate, current, or otherwise reliable.

1 in. = 27ft.

52.9

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Legend

Feet0 52.926.47

Notes

Road

<all other values>

Interstate

US Highway

State Numbered Highway

Railroad

Address Point

Parcel

Parcel Number/Acres

Leased Land

Corporate Limit Line

Land Hook

Easement

Right-of-Way

Contour

<all other values>

Intermediate

Index

Park

Section

County Boundary



RESOLUTION 1586 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THOSE CERTAIN AGREEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH 

THE MAIN STREET SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS – PHASE 4 PROJECT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch is concerned about the safety of pedestrians 
walking in the Downtown Business District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, in cooperation with affected property owners, has 
previously completed three Main Street Sidewalk Projects on Main Street between Parkside 
Drive and Poplar Street and on N. Downey Street between Main Street and Green Street;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch, in now interested in 
performing sidewalk repairs on the northern side of the 100 block of E. Main Street, called the 
Main Street Sidewalk Improvements – Phase 4 Project (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has bid and intends to complete the Project in July of 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch has heretofore deemed it 
necessary to assess a portion of the Project to the adjoining property owners, said owners being 
located at: 
 
 101 North Downey Street 
 109 East Main Street 
 111 East Main Street 
 115 East Main Street 
 (the “Owners”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City will utilize funds from Fund 160 – the Revolving Loan Fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owners will pay the City a portion of the assessment for each property 
on July 31st of 2018, 2019 and 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Attorney has prepared assessment agreements for each of the 
Owners to accomplish the same, all of which require approval of the City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, City staff and elected officials have discussed the proposed project with 

representatives of the property owners whose property would be impacted as a result of the 
construction of the Main Street Sidewalk Improvements – Phase 4 Project; and 



 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney and City Staff have prepared easement agreements for the 

review of these property owners and Main Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property owners have signed said agreements; and 
  
WHEREAS, these easement agreements now require approval of the West Branch City 

Council. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 
Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned assessment agreements with the Owners 
be and the same are hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor and City Clerk are directed to execute 
said agreements on behalf of the City. 
 
 
 
  Passed and approved this 3rd day of April, 2017. 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 



  

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1587 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING BIDS AND AWARDING THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
FOR THE WEST BRANCH SIDEWALK PHASE 4 IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, has heretofore deemed it 
necessary and desirable to construct Main Street Sidewalk – Phase 4 including all labor, 
materials, and equipment necessary for storm sewer, PCC retaining wall-sidewalk, PCC curb & 
gutter, PCC sidewalk, HMA pavement, traffic control, and associated work, said project having 
been referred to as the “West Branch Sidewalk Phase 4 Improvements Project” for the City of 
West Branch, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the bids for the aforementioned project were received, opened and tabulated 
as per published notice therefor on March 2, 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the bid of All American Concrete, Inc., was the lowest responsive, 
responsible bid received; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said bid was in the amount of $129,149; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer has heretofore reviewed the bids and recommended that 
the City Council approve and accept the aforementioned bid for said project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 
Branch, Iowa, that the bid of All American Concrete, Inc., in the amount of $129,149 be and the 
same is hereby accepted and approved and the construction contract is awarded to All American 
Concrete, Inc. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby directed to execute the 
construction contract on behalf of the City. 
 
 * * * * * * * * 
 
   Passed and approved this 3rd day of April, 2017. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Roger Laughlin, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 











RESOLUTION NO. 1592 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A 2017  ____________ POLICE 
DEPARTMENT VEHICLE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $28,500. 

 
WHEREAS, the West Branch Police Department plans ahead for large equipment purchases; and 
 
WHEREAS, a new patrol vehicle has been planned to be purchased in Fiscal Year 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the West Branch Police Department has set aside funding for this vehicle and the 

purchase of the vehicle will not require any borrowing on behalf of the City of West Branch or the West 
Branch Police Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, the West Branch Police Department will seek bids for the vehicle; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purchase of a 2017 vehicle is required to meet equipment and budget 

requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the West Branch Police Department must order a 2017 vehicle prior to April 20, 

2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the West Branch Police Department will not take possession of said vehicle prior to 

July 1, 2017. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 
Cedar County, Iowa, that the City Council approves the purchase of a 2017 ____________ Police 
Department Vehicle in an amount not to exceed $28,500. 
 
  Passed and approved this 3rd day of April, 2017 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Roger Laughlin, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 





RESOLUTION NO. 1594 
 
 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING CROELL READY MIX, INC. GRADING AND 
EROSION CONTROL PLAN 
 

 
WHEREAS, Croell Ready Mix, Inc. has heretofore submitted a proposed Grading 

and Erosion Control Plan to prepare land for future building construction at 145 Fawcett 
Drive in the City of West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, said Grading and Erosion Control Plan has heretofore been reviewed 

by City Staff, including the City Engineer; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Grading and Erosion Control Plan has been found to conform to 

West Branch Code of Ordinances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

reviewed the Grading and Erosion Control Plan and recommended its approval to the 
West Branch City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Grading and 

Erosion Control Plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Grading Plan for 
the Project be and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 

 
 

* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 3rd day of April, 2017. 

 
       
  ______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 



L

OPEN
PANEL

PANEL

OPEN

OPEN

PANEL

OPEN

PANEL

OPEN

PANEL

OPEN

PANEL

PANEL

OPEN

OPEN

PANEL

PANEL

OPEN

PANEL

OPEN

736 736

7
3
6

7
3
6

737

737

7
3
7

737

737

738

738738

738 738 738

739

7
3
9

7
3
9

739 739 739

7
3
9739739

740
7
4
0

7407407
4
0

740
740 740 7

4
0

740

7
4
0

7
4

1

741 741 741

741

74
2 742 742 742

7
4
2

743 743

743

74
3

7
4
3

744

744
744

74
4

745

7
4
5

745

7
4

5

7
4
5

74
6

7
4
6

7
4

6

746

7
4

6

746

7
4

6

74
7

7
4
7

7
4
7

747

7
4
7

7
4

7

747

7
4

8

7
4
8

748 748

7
4
8

7
4

9

7
4
9

749 749

7
5
0

7
5
0

750 750

7
5
1

751
751 751

7
5
2

752
752 752

7
5
3

753
753 753

754
754

754

755
755

755756

756757

7
5
8

E: 2229852.73

N: 611421.97

F.L. 734.50

12" RCP FES

E: 2229974.83

N: 611492.78

F.L. 736.00

12" RCP FES

12" RCP FL 735.65

(Top San 734.90)

Exist 8" San FL 734.06

E: 2229937.17

N: 611230.19

F.L. 735.00

12" RCP FES

E: 2229892.19

N: 611204.10

F.L. 734.50

12" RCP FES

F
.L
.=

7
2
8
.9

9
 
3
0
"
 

R
C

P

CC

C

C
C

Inv=733.65 8" PVC W

Inv=733.54 12" DIP S

Inv=733.65 8" PVC E

Inv=733.58 8" PVC N

Rim=738.36

Inv=737.86 8" PVC W

Inv=737.85 8" PVC S

Inv=737.99 8" PVC E

Inv=737.96 8" PVC N

Well = 737.90

Rim=744.43

Inv=732.38 12" DIP E

Inv=732.52 12" DIP N

Rim=736.65

Inv=732.01 12" VCP W

Inv=731.72 8" PVC S

Inv=731.92 12" PVC N

Rim=740.41

F.L.=731.63 30" RCP S

F.L.=731.65 30" RCP N

Rim=736.29

F.L.=727.92 48" RCP

F.L.=727.68 48" RCP

F.L.=732.70 30" RCP

730

735

735

735

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

7
3
5

74
0

7
4
0

740

740

7
4
0

740

7
4

0
7
4
5

74
5

74
5

745

7
4

5

7
4
5

75
0

75
0

750

7
5
0

7
5
0

7
5
0

755

75
5

755

7
5
5

760

7
6
0

7
60

7
6
5 7

6
5

L
M

C

M
:\

2
0
1
6
_

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
\

1
1
6
.0

8
7

8
_

C
r
o
e
ll
 S
it
e
 
P
la

n
 

W
e
s
t
 
B
r
a
n
c
h
\

C
a
d
d
\
c
d
_

1
1
6
0
8
7

8
_

0
2
_

g
r
a
d
in

g
 
p
la

n
.d

g
n

3
/
1
6
/
2
0
1
7

1
0
:2

6
:1

3
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:1

0
0

Y
:\

p
e
n
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

Y
:\

p
r
in
t
_

d
r
iv

e
r
s
\

B
la

c
k
_

G
r
a
y
\

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

W
E

S
T
 B

R
A

N
C

H
, 
IO

W
A

1160878

1
1
6
0
8
7

8

D
J

D

C
R

O
E

L
L
 R

E
D
I-

M
IX
 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

0
3
-
1
6
-
1
7

L
M

C
T

A
C

G
R

A
D
IN

G
 A

N
D
 E

R
O

S
IO

N
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 P

L
A

N
1
0
0
'

0

SCALE (FEET)

100

2

2

POLLUTION PREVENTION NOTES

TO FILING OF THE "NOTICE OF DISCONTINUATION".

k.REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AND SITE WASTE PRIOR 

ONSITE.

CONTROL DEVICE WHERE POSSIBLE.  CONCRETE WASHOUT MUST BE CONTAINED 

BERMS AND/OR SILT BARRIERS AND DIRECT TO A SEDIMENT BASIN OR OTHER 

WASHOUT FACILITY.  CONTROL RUNOFF FROM STAGING AREAS WITH DIVERSION 

TEMPORARY SANITARY FACILITIES, MATERIALS STORAGE, AND CONCRETE 

FOLLOWING: JOB TRAILERS, FUELING / VEHICLE MAINTENANCE AREA, 

THE SWPPP.  UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, STAGING AREAS SHOULD CONTAIN THE 

j.COORDINATE LOCATIONS OF STAGING AREAS WITH THE OWNER AND RECORD IN 

OR IS PLANNED TO BE DELAYED MORE THAN 21 CALENDAR DAYS.

LATER THAN 14 CALENDAR DAYS AFTER CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY HAS FINISHED 

OR DELAY OF GRADING OPERATIONS.  INITIATE STABILIZATION MEASURES NO 

MIX, PERMANENT SEED MIX, OR SOD AS SOON AS PRACTICAL UPON COMPLETION 

i.STABILIZE UNDEVELOPED, DISTURBED AREAS WITH MULCH, TEMPORARY SEED 

OTHER IMPROVEMENTS ARE LOCATED.

IN SOD) ON ALL DISTURBED AREAS, EXCEPT WHERE PAVEMENT, BUILDINGS OR 

h.RESPREAD A MINIMUM OF 4 INCHES OF TOPSOIL (INCLUDING TOPSOIL FOUND 

AS SOON AS STORM SEWERS ARE INSTALLED. 

CONTINUOUS RUNOFF CONTROL. PROVIDE INLET AND OUTLET CONTROL MEASURES 

THEIR FINAL GRADES AND AS CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS PROGRESS TO ENSURE 

CONTROL MATS, MULCH, DITCH CHECKS OR RIPRAP AS SOON AS AREAS REACH 

g.INSTALL NECESSARY CONTROL MEASURES SUCH AS SILT BARRIERS, EROSION 

REMEDIAL ACTIONS FOR FUTURE PREVENTION.

REMOVE ANY ACCUMULATION OF EARTH OR DEBRIS IMMEDIATELY AND TAKE 

STREETS, DRIVEWAYS, SIDEWALKS, DRAINAGEWAYS, OR UNDERGROUND SEWERS. 

ACTIVITIES ON ADJOINING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTIES, INCLUDING 

f.PREVENT ACCUMULATION OF EARTH AND DEBRIS FROM CONSTRUCTION 

MEASURES WITHIN 7 DAYS.

DURING CONSTRUCTION. REVISE THE SWPPP AND IMPLEMENT ANY RECOMMENDED 

THE SWPPP WITH A COPY SUBMITTED WEEKLY TO THE OWNER OR ENGINEER 

RECORD THE FINDINGS OF THESE INSPECTIONS AND ANY RESULTING ACTIONS IN 

PERSONNEL ASSIGNED BY THE CONTRACTOR) EVERY SEVEN CALENDAR DAYS. 

e.INSPECT THE PROJECT AREA AND CONTROL DEVICES (BY QUALIFIED 

CAPACITY.

CONTROL DEVICES WHEN THE MEASURES HAVE LOST 50% OF THEIR ORIGINAL 

SEDIMENT REMOVAL THROUGHOUT THE PERMIT PERIOD. CLEAN OR REPLACE SILT 

WORKING ORDER, INCLUDING CLEANING, REPAIRING, REPLACEMENT, AND 

d.MAINTAIN ALL TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL MEASURES IN 

OPERATIONS AT ANY TIME.

AND LIMIT TO A MINIMUM THE TOTAL AREA DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION 

c.PRESERVE EXISTING VEGETATION IN AREAS NOT NEEDED FOR CONSTRUCTION 

GRADING OPERATIONS.

DOWNSTREAM OF SOIL DISTURBING ACTIVITIES PRIOR TO SITE CLEARING AND 

BARRIERS, DITCH CHECKS, DIVERSION BERMS, OR SEDIMENTATION BASINS 

b.INSTALL PERIMETER AND FINAL SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SUCH AS SILT 

SOIL COMPACTION.

SEDIMENT REMOVAL AND MAXIMIZE STORM WATER INFILTRATION, AND MINIMIZE 

SURFACE WATERS, DIRECT STORM WATER TO VEGETATED AREAS TO INCREASE 

DISCHARGING FROM BASINS, PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN NATURAL BUFFERS AROUND 

a.UTILIZE OUTLET STRUCTURES THAT WITHDRAW WATER FROM THE SURFACE WHEN 

FOLLOWING BMP'S UNLESS INFEASIBLE OR NOT APPLICABLE:

OF THE GENERAL PERMIT AND SWPPP, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE 

4.THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS 

CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS AND CHANGES AT THE PROJECT SITE.

3.THE SWPPP AND SITE MAP SHOULD BE EXPEDITIOUSLY REVISED TO REFLECT 

THOSE SHOWN ON THE PLAN MAY BE REQUIRED.

CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY, NOTE AND IMPLEMENT. ADDITIONAL BMP'S FROM 

RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE 

COVERAGE.  ALL BMP'S AND EROSION CONTROL MEASURES REQUIRED AS A 

PRACTICES (BMP) FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROJECT'S NPDES PERMIT 

2.THE SWPPP ILLUSTRATES GENERAL MEASURES AND BEST MANAGEMENT 

THE POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN MADE DURING CONSTRUCTION.

REFER TO THE SWPPP FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS TO 

DOCUMENT IN ADDITION TO THESE PLAN DRAWINGS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHOULD 

1.THE STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) IS A SEPARATE 

C.POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN:

ACCEPTANCE AND/OR SUBMITTAL OF THE NOTICE OF DISCONTINUATION.

AND PROVIDE THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS TO THE OWNER UPON PROJECT 

AFTER PROJECT COMPLETION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RETAIN A RECORD COPY 

AND OTHER DOCUMENTS MUST BE RETAINED FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS 

TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES.  ALL PLANS, INSPECTION REPORTS, 

FINAL STABILIZATION OF THE DISTURBED SITE AND REMOVAL OF ALL 

3.A "NOTICE OF DISCONTINUATION" MUST BE FILED WITH THE IDNR UPON 

OF THE CLEAN WATER ACT AND THE CODE OF IOWA.

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE NPDES PERMIT REQUIREMENTS IS A VIOLATION 

AND MUST BE PRESENTED TO ANY JURISDICTIONAL AGENCIES UPON REQUEST.  

INSPECTION LOG, AND OTHER ITEMS, SHALL BE KEPT ON SITE AT ALL TIMES 

PUBLICATIONS, DISCHARGE AUTHORIZATION LETTER, CURRENT SWPPP, SITE 

INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE NOTICE OF INTENT, PROOF OF 

2.ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT, 

GENERAL PERMIT COVERAGE FROM THE IDNR.

WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) AND POSSIBLY OBTAINING THE 

GENERAL PERMIT NO. 2 INCLUDING CREATING OR MAINTAINING THE STORM 

FOR COMPLIANCE WITH AND FULFILLMENT OF ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE NPDES 

(EPA). THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE 

FROM THE IDNR, AS REQUIRED BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

FOR STORM WATER DISCHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 

1.THIS PROJECT REQUIRES COVERAGE UNDER THE NPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO. 2 

B.STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT

THE COST THEREOF FROM AMOUNTS DUE TO THE CONTRACTOR.

PROPERTY, THE OWNER MAY, BUT NEED NOT, REMOVE SUCH ITEMS AND DEDUCT 

SEDIMENTATION OR DEBRIS WHICH COMES ONTO ADJOINING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE 

CONTRACTOR FAILS TO TAKE NECESSARY STEPS TO PROMPTLY REMOVE EARTH 

INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEY FEES INCURRED TO OWNER. FURTHER, IF THE 

RESULTING FROM DAMAGES TO ADJOINING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY, 

ENGINEER HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS OF ANY TYPE WHATSOEVER 

2.DAMAGE CLAIMS: THE CONTRACTOR WILL HOLD THE OWNER AND ARCHITECT / 

DEPOSIT AREAS DURING PERFORMANCE OR AS A RESULT OF PERFORMANCE.

AND POLLUTION FROM THIS PROJECT SITE AND ALL OFF-SITE BORROW OR 

CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO PROTECT AGAINST EROSION 

PERMIT, THE U.S. CLEAN WATER ACT AND ANY LOCAL ORDINANCES. THE 

IOWA CODE, THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR) NPDES 

ALL POTENTIAL POLLUTION AND SOIL EROSION CONTROL REQUIREMENTS OF THE 

1.CODE COMPLIANCE: THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH 

A.POLLUTION PREVENTION AND EROSION PROTECTION

Silt Fence (Typ)

Silt Fence (Typ)

Silt Fence (Typ)

Filter Sock (Typ)

Filter Sock (Typ)

(Typ)

Silt Fence

Entrance (50'x30')

Stabilized Construction 

Silt Fence (Typ)

Stockpile Location



 
RESOLUTION NO. 1595 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 28E AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
WEST BRANCH, IOWA AND THE BOARDS OF TRUSTEES OF CASS, 
GOWER, GRAHAM, IOWA, SCOTT AND SPRINGDALE TOWNSHIPS FOR 
THE PURPOSES OF FIRE PROTECTION AND AID AND ASSISTANCE FOR 
OTHER EMERGENCIES OR DISASTERS RELATING TO LIFE AND 
PROPERTY, OR HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. 
 
 
  WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of West Branch and Cass, 
Gower, Graham, Iowa, Scott and Springdale Townships to have a joint agreement for 
the purpose of providing fire protection and aid and assistance for other emergencies 
or disasters relating to life and property, or hazardous materials; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the best interest of the residents of 

West Branch to have updated agreements in place to provide these services to the 
various townships; and  

 
  WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreements. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City 
of West Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned 28E Agreements are hereby 
approved.  Further, the Mayor is directed to execute the agreement on behalf of the 
City. 
 
   Passed and approved this 3rd day of April, 2017. 
 
 

      _________________________ 
      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 



























RESOLUTION NO. 1596 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR THE MUSIC ON THE 
GREEN CONCERT SERIES. 
 
  WHEREAS, one of the City’s premier events of the year is the Music on the 
Green Concert Series; and   

 
WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2016-2017 and fiscal year 2017-2018 budgets 

for community and development include funding for entertainment; and 
 

  WHEREAS, a proposed service agreement in the amount of $500.00 for 
The Feralings is hereby presented for consideration by the City Council; and 
 
  WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreements. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City 
of West Branch, Iowa that the aforementioned agreements are hereby approved.  
Further, the Mayor is directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City. 
 
Passed and approved this 3rd day of April, 2017. 
 
 

      _________________________ 
      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
________________________________ 
Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 







RESOLUTION NO. 1597 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ANNUAL INSURANCE RENEWALS WITH WELLMARK 
BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF IOWA FOR HEALTH AND DENTAL INSURANCE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa received insurance renewal quotations from 
Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of Iowa for health and dental insurance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after reviewing the insurance renewal quotations, the City Council has 
decided to accept the quotations, effective April 1, 2017. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 
Branch, Iowa, that the insurance renewals with Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of Iowa are 
hereby approved.   
 
  Passed and approved this 3rd day of April, 2017. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 





RESOLUTION NO. 1598 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WAGE WORKS FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT 
RENEWAL FOR APRIL 1, 2017 – JANUARY 31, 2018 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa received a renewal quotation from Wage 
Works for administration of a flexible spending account program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after reviewing the flexible spending account renewal quotation, the City 
Council has decided to accept the quotation for the coming year ending on January 31, 2018. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 
Branch, Iowa, that the flexible spending account renewal with Wage Works is hereby approved.   
 
  Passed and approved this 3rd day of April, 2017. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 



City of Ottumwa 3/28/2017

Market Street Bridge DRS

Project Feature Utilized 2013 Price 2016 Price Unit Quantity 2016 Cost

Adair Traffic Rail Barrier Rail $50.00 $55.00 LF 314 $17,270.00

(2000233) Handrail Steel Pipe $60.00 $70.00 LF 286 $20,020.00

Sidewalk Rail Chain Link Fence $35.00 $40.00 LF 314 $12,560.00

Lights NA - Not Mounted on Bridge NA NA NA

Total Cost of Aesthetic Features = $49,850.00

Corning Traffic Rail Open Rail (closed windows) $55.00 $60.00 LF 314 $18,840.00

(2008112) Handrail Steel Pipe (painted/coated) $70.00 $80.00 LF 286 $22,880.00

Sidewalk Rail Chain Link Fence (vinyl coated) $45.00 $50.00 LF 314 $15,700.00

Lights NA - Not Mounted on Bridge NA NA NA

Total Cost of Aesthetic Features = $57,420.00

King's Highway Traffic Rail Aesthetic Barrier (Stone Stamp) $100.00 $110.00 LF 314 $34,540.00

Hamilton Blvd. Handrail Structural Steel Handrail $80.00 $90.00 LF 286 $25,740.00

(2012172) Sidewalk Rail Structural Steel Railing $130.00 $140.00 LF 314 $43,960.00

Lights NA - Not Mounted on Bridge NA NA NA

Total Cost of Aesthetic Features = $104,240.00

Centerville Traffic Rail Aesthetic Barrier (Texas Rail) $100.00 $110.00 LF 314 $34,540.00

(2004094) Traffic Rail Colored Sealer Coat on Barrier $30.00 $35.00 SY 258 $9,030.00

Rockford Handrail Structural Steel Handrail $80.00 $90.00 LF 286 $25,740.00

(2008124) Sidewalk Rail Structural Steel Railing $130.00 $140.00 LF 314 $43,960.00

Street Lights Decorative Street Lights $5,000.00 $5,500.00 Each 6 $33,000.00

Total Cost of Aesthetic Features = $146,270.00

Carlisle Traffic Rail Aesthetic Barrier (Texas Rail) $100.00 $110.00 LF 314 $34,540.00

(2000239) Traffic Rail Colored Sealer Coat on Barrier $30.00 $35.00 SY 258 $9,030.00

Handrail Structural Steel Handrail $100.00 $110.00 LF 286 $31,460.00

Sidewalk Rail Structural Steel Railing $130.00 $140.00 LF 314 $43,960.00

Street Lights Decorative Street Lights $5,000.00 $5,500.00 Each 6 $33,000.00

Total Cost of Aesthetic Features = $151,990.00

Arnolds Park Traffic Rail Aesthetic Barrier (Texas Rail) $100.00 $110.00 LF 314 $34,540.00

(2002139) Traffic Rail Colored Sealer Coat on Barrier $30.00 $35.00 SY 258 $9,030.00

Handrail Structural Steel Handrail $140.00 $150.00 LF 286 $42,900.00

Sidewalk Rail Structural Steel Railing $170.00 $180.00 LF 314 $56,520.00

Street Lights Decorative Street Lights $8,000.00 $10,000.00 Each 4 $40,000.00

Total Cost of Aesthetic Features = $182,990.00

Cost of Aesthetic Options



City of West Branch 3/28/2017

College Street Bridge Replacement DRS

Feature / Option Picture / Project 2016 Price Unit Quantity 2016 Cost

Traffic Rail

Barrier Rail Adair $75.00 LF 174 $13,050.00

Open Rail (closed windows) Corning $70.00 LF 174 $12,180.00

Texas Rail (standard concrete) Conrad, Coon Rapids $130.00 LF 174 $22,620.00

Texas Rail (colored sealer) Carlisle, Arnolds Park, Centerville, Rockford $150.00 LF 174 $26,100.00

Stone Stamped Barrier Kings Highway, Hamilton Blvd $150.00 LF 174 $26,100.00

Brick Veneer Barrier 38th St. $250.00 LF 174 $43,500.00

Handrail

Steel Pipe (no paint/coating) Adair $80.00 LF 73 $5,840.00

Steel Pipe (with paint/coating) Corning $90.00 LF 73 $6,570.00

Single Rail (standard) Conrad, Centerville, Rockford, 38th St $100.00 LF 73 $7,300.00

Single Rail (side mount) Kings Highway, Hamilton Blvd $100.00 LF 73 $7,300.00

Double Rail w/ Balusters Carlisle, Coon Rapids $120.00 LF 73 $8,760.00

Arcing Rail Arnolds Park $150.00 LF 73 $10,950.00

Sidewalk Rail

Chain Link Fence (uncoated) Adair $40.00 LF 87 $3,480.00

Chain Link Fence (vinyl coating) Corning $50.00 LF 87 $4,350.00

Standard Rail w/ Balusters Carlisle, Centerville, Rockford, Coon Rapids, Conrad $140.00 LF 87 $12,180.00

Double Rail w/ Balusters Kings Highway, Hamilton Blvd, 38th St $150.00 LF 87 $13,050.00

Arcing Rail w/ Balusters Arnolds Park $180.00 LF 87 $15,660.00

Lights

Standard Single on Pilaster Carlisle, Centerville, Rockford, Coon Rapids, Conrad $5,500.00 Each 4 $22,000.00

Triple/double on pilaster Arnolds Park, Rockford $6,000.00 Each 4 $24,000.00

Fixture on Custom Pilaster 38th St $7,500.00 Each 4 $30,000.00

Large Stone faced Pilaster Arnolds Park $10,000.00 Each 4 $40,000.00

Notes

1)  Barrier Rails can be any color (colored concrete or colored sealer)

2)  Sidewalk rails, Handrails and light poles can be any color

3)  Various types and styles of light poles, bracket arms, luminaires and lights

4)  Lights can be mounted to barrier rail pilasters or sidewalk rail pilasters

Cost Estimate for Aesthetic Options



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1599 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING PEDERSEN VALLEY PART THREE PHASE TWO, 

LOTS 41 &42 AND PEDERSEN VALLEY PART FIVE, OUTLOT G SITE PLAN  
 

 

WHEREAS, IWB LLC has heretofore submitted a proposed Site Plan to construct 

multi-family housing located near Hilltop Drive in the City of West Branch, Iowa (the 

“Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, said Site Plan has heretofore been reviewed by City Staff, including 

the City Engineer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan has been found to conform to West Branch Code of 

Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

reviewed the Site Plan and recommended its approval to the West Branch City Council; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Site Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan for the 

Project be and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 

 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 3rd day of April, 2017. 

 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 















 
Adair 
Traffic Rail:  Barrier 
Handrail:  Steel Pipe (not painted) 
Sidewalk Rail:  Chain Link Fence (no vinyl coating) 
Lights:  NA – No Lights Mounted on the Bridge 



 
Corning 
Traffic Rail:  Open 
Handrail:  Steel Pipe (painted/coated) 
Sidewalk Rail:  Chain Link Fence (vinyl coating) 
Lights:  NA – No Lights Mounted on the Bridge 
 



 
Conrad 
Traffic Rail:  Texas Rail (standard concrete, no color) 
Handrail:  Single Rail (standard) 
Sidewalk Rail:  Standard Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  Standard Single – Mounted on Traffic Rail Pilasters (left) and on Sidewalk Rail Pilasters (right) 



 
Coon Rapids 
Traffic Rail:  Texas Rail (standard concrete, no color) 
Handrail:  Double Rail with Balusters  
Sidewalk Rail:  Standard Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  Standard Single – Mounted on Traffic Rail Pilasters 



 
Carlisle 
Traffic Rail:  Texas Rail (with colored concrete sealer) 
Handrail:  Double Rail with Balusters  
Sidewalk Rail:  Standard Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  Standard Single – Mounted on Traffic Rail Pilasters 



 
Arnolds Park 
Traffic Rail:  Texas Rail (with colored concrete sealer) 
Handrail:  Arcing Rail  
Sidewalk Rail:  Arcing Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  Pole with 2 fixtures – Mounted on Large Stone Faced Pilasters at Corners 



 
Arnolds Park 
Traffic Rail:  Texas Rail (with colored concrete sealer) 
Handrail:  Arcing Rail  
Sidewalk Rail:  Arcing Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  Pole with 2 fixtures – Mounted on Large Stone Faced Pilasters at Corners 



 
Centerville 
Traffic Rail:  Texas Rail (with colored concrete sealer) 
Handrail:  Single Rail (standard, note green color) 
Sidewalk Rail:  Standard Rail with Balusters (standard green color) 
Lights:  Standard Single – Mounted on Sidewalk Rail Pilasters (note green light poles) 



 
Rockford 
Traffic Rail:  Texas Rail (with colored concrete sealer) 
Handrail:  Single Rail (standard)  
Sidewalk Rail:  Standard Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  Single at Ends with Triple at Center – Mounted on Sidewalk Rail Pilasters 



 
Sioux City – Hamilton Blvd. 
Traffic Rail:  Stone Stamped Barrier Rail 
Handrail:  Single Rail (side mounted)  
Sidewalk Rail:  Double Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  NA – No Lights Mounted on the Bridge 



 
Sioux City – King’s Hwy. 
Traffic Rail:  Stone Stamped Barrier Rail 
Handrail:  Single Rail (side mounted)  
Sidewalk Rail:  Double Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  NA – No Lights Mounted on the Bridge 



 
Sioux City – 38th St. 
Traffic Rail:  Brick Veneer Barrier Rail 
Handrail:  Single Rail (top mounted)  
Sidewalk Rail:  Double Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  Fixtures Mounted on Custom Pilasters at Corners 



 
Sioux City – 38th St. 
Traffic Rail:  Brick Veneer Barrier Rail 
Handrail:  Single Rail (top mounted)  
Sidewalk Rail:  Double Rail with Balusters 
Lights:  Fixtures Mounted on Custom Pilasters at Corners 





 

1-800-292-8989
www.iowaonecall.com

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA

CITY ADMINISTRATOR DATE

THIS ENGINEERING DOCUMENT HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY THE JURISDICTION
AND IS RECOMMENDED FOR FILING WITH THE CITY CLERK

Date

 All 

I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me
or under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly
licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa.

        Nathan P. Kass, P.E. & P.L.S.
License Number 18659
My license renewal date is December 31, 2017.
Pages or sheets covered by this seal:



 



 



 

SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

PEDERSEN VALLEY PARK



 



 

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

• ” 
” 

•

•

•

•

•

•

•
“

”  

•
• ’

•

•

•

•
•



 

” 

Date

 C.03 - C.05 

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments
were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with
a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly
gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based on my
inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those
persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the
information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of
fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

        Nathan P. Kass, P.E., P.L.S.
License Number 18659
My license renewal date is December 31, 2017.
Pages or sheets covered by this seal:



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 


	17_04_03_Agenda
	Minutes 17_3_20_GRE
	AllAmericanPayEstimate3
	res1586
	res1587
	Main_Street_4_Bid_TabsLandscape
	res1592
	17MY Police Sedan Bid Spec
	res1594
	exh_2017-03-16_Croell_Site
	res1595
	Fire28EAgreements
	res1596
	ContractFeralings
	res1597
	Welmark  
	res1598
	CollegeSt - Cost Estimate
	CollegeSt - Cost Estimateb
	CollegeSt - Aesthetic Photos
	10100002Plans-032117.pdf
	10100002Y 1 (1)
	10100002Y 2 (1)
	10100002Y 3 (1)
	10100002Y 4 (1)
	10100002Y 5 (1)
	10100002Y 6 (1)


